
 
 
 

 
 
 

          8 September 2020 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
 

CHANDLER'S FORD AND HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Wednesday, 16 September 2020 

beginning at 
7:00 pm 

in  
PLEASE NOTE: this will be a ‘virtual meeting’. The meeting can be viewed here: 

https://bit.ly/3bFdOuj 

 
TO: Councillor Alan Broadhurst (Chairman) 
 Councillor Tim Groves (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor Margaret Atkinson Councillor Judith Grajewski 
Councillor David Pragnell Councillor James Duguid 

 
Staff Contacts: Laura Johnston, Senior Democratic Officer Tel:023 8068 8041  

Email: laura.johnston@eastleigh.gov.uk;  Please email: 
Democratic.Services@eastleigh.gov.uk to register to speak before 
the meeting. 

 Julie Williams, Local Area Manager, Tel: 023 8068 8289; Email: 
julie.williams@eastleigh.gov.uk 

 
NATALIE WIGMAN 

Corporate Director - Strategy 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website - 
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings as well as in other formats, including 

Braille, audio, large print and other languages, upon request. 
 

PLEASE NOTE that any member of the press and public may listen-in to 
proceedings at this ‘virtual’ meeting via a weblink which will be publicised on the 
Council website at least 24hrs before the meeting. It is important, however, that 

Councillors can discuss and take decisions without disruption, so the only 
participants in this virtual meeting will be the Councillors concerned, the officers 
advising the Committee and any participants who have registered in advance to 

speak. This meeting may be recorded. 

 

 
Eastleigh House 

 Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

1

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings


AGENDA 
 

1. Minutes    (Pages 5 - 8)  

 To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 17 June 2020. 
  
2. Apologies     
 
3. Declarations of Interest      

 Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 

  
4. Public Participation      

 Councillors not on the Local Area Committee and members of the public can 
participate during this section of the meeting in the following ways: 
 

 If you are able to participate live (meet the technical requirements) and wish to 

be present and speak, you will need to notify Democratic Services 4 working 

days (Midday Thursday 10 September 2020) before the meeting. Technical 

and etiquette guides will be provided. 

 Alternatively, the public can email a statement to be read out by ‘the 

spokesperson’.  Emailed statements will need to be received 2 working days 

(Midday Monday 14 September 2020) before the date of the meeting. 

Democratic Services will confirm receipt of the email and confirm it can be read 

out. 

 The statement (including questions) will be the equivalent of a maximum 

of three minutes if read out.  Please therefore restrict your statement to one 

side of A4 (12 font).  This applies audio/ video recordings also. 

 Alternatively a MP4 file will be sent to Democratic Services 4 working days 

(Midday Thursday 10 September 2020) before the meeting.  This must be 

accompanied by a written transcript (emailed). In the event that the file does not 

meet technical requirements the transcript will be read by the spokesperson 

and shown on the screen.  

 Please contact us via democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk 
  
5. Chair's report     
 
6. Presentation on Planning Guidelines     
 
7. Planning Application - 16 Keble Road, Chandler's Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 3DS - 

F/19/85922    (Pages 9 - 30)  

 Erection of 4no. four bedroom detached dwellings with associated garages and 
hard and soft landscaping following demolition of existing bungalow. 

  

2

mailto:democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk


8. Planning Application - 32 Randall Road, Chandler's Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 5AL - 
H/20/87573    (Pages 31 - 50)  

 Two storey front, side, rear extensions; and single storey side and rear extension 
and addition of flue. 

  
9. Planning Application - 31 Ormesby Drive, Chandler's Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 1SH - 

H/20/88378    (Pages 51 - 56)  

 Single storey rear extension.  
  
10. Planning Appeals      

 The Head of Legal Services to report:- 
 
(a) that the following appeals have been lodged:- 
  

28 Brownhill Road, Chandler’s Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 2EA 
 
Appeal against raising of roof to provide loft space and mezzanine, two 
storey rear extension, removal of chimney and alterations to fenestration. 
(H/20/87218)  
 
3 Oakwood Close, Chandler’s Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 5NW 
 
Appeal against a garage conversion and hall extension (H/20/87294) 

  
(b) that the following appeals have been dismissed:- 
  

Southampton Audi, 50-78 Bournemouth Road, Chandler’s Ford, Eastleigh, 
SO53 3DH  
 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant permission for a purpose 
designed, double sided, mobile, free standing point-of-sale device to display 
images of the products and services sold on the premises. This is not a 
digital sign, the unit contains canvases with a static image and text. 
(A/19/86647) 
 
38 Guildford Drive, Chandler’s Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 3PT 
 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant permission for the construction 
of a single storey garden pavilion to the rear garden.  (H/19/85385) 

  
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news - 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Wednesday, 18 November 2020 at 7:00 pm 

3



Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews 

 

4

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


1 
 

CHANDLER'S FORD AND HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 17 June 2020  (7:00 pm – 7:40 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Broadhurst (Chairman); Councillors Groves, Atkinson, 
Grajewski, Pragnell and Duguid 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

64. MINUTES 
 
A number of amendments were highlighted by the Committee: 
 

 Councillors Grajewski and Atkinson voted against the Fees and 
Charges item and had asked for this to be recorded in the minutes 
(paragraph 59); and 

 Councillor Pragnell’s declaration of interest needed to be updated to 
reflect that his daughter owned property in Richmond Close but did 
not reside there. 

 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 15 January 2020 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record subject to the 
above amendments. 
 

65. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Councillor Grajewski declared a personal interest in agenda item 6, 
Financial Management Report, as she had given the Guides a grant from 
her County Council funds. 
 

66. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
A statement was read to the Committee from Mrs Woolford relating to the 
detrimental impact of the Silver Birch tree next to her property on her 
husband’s health.  They have requested that the tree be removed and had 
asked for the Committee’s support. 
 
The Chair confirmed that this item was on the agenda to be discussed at 
the Committee’s next Working Group meeting. 
 

67. CHAIR'S REPORT 
 
The Chair thanked the volunteers who stepped up instantly at the start of 
“Lock Down” to serve the community so well; they had been and continued 

5

Agenda Item 1



2 
 

to do, outstanding work.  He made a mention and expressed special 
thanks to Chandler’s Ford Help who had been nothing short of fantastic in 
helping so many people and families, the local Churches who reached out 
to people of all and no faiths, and “lockdownfm” who broadcast to the 
community. Without these organisations many in the community would 
have really struggled. 
 
The last few weeks have really shown what a caring community there was 
in the area. As a 70+ year old, initially he did not feel able to get out and 
about to and be involved but had spoken to people who had been helped 
and really appreciated the effort put in by the above organisations.  
 
He also thanked and praised the Council’s own staff along with those at 
One Community for their work with all the similar volunteer groups 
throughout the Borough ensuring that there was Borough-wide coverage 
and organisation. 
 
As a Council we are all having to work differently now, and he welcomed 
the Committee’s new Local Area Manager (LAM) Julie Williams who 
started work for the Council just as lockdown began meant staff working 
were working from home where possible!!  
 
The Chair was sure that all members would join him in saying how pleased 
they were to see their assistant LAM Narinder back and well after several 
weeks fighting Covid19.  He also expressed their thanks to Min Partner for 
her work and help to all the committee. 
 
As they were having to work differently, this meant that Park Sport will 
have to be much different this year and officers were working on ways to 
encourage people to be active. The Committee had set aside funding to go 
towards Park Sport at their December Working Group which should have 
been confirmed at the March meeting. To enable materials and equipment 
to be ordered and provided for this year’s Park Sport all LAC’s were asked 
to make the funding available. As this was urgent and could not wait, I 
agreed that we would provide the funding of £2,000 in line with what we 
had indicated in December. 
 
Until further notice meetings will have to remain as virtual online meetings, 
which was a different experience for members, officers and the public. 
He closed his remarks by thanking officers for their help and for facilitating 
this meeting. 
 

68. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT REPORT 
 
The Committee considered a report by the Local Area Manager outlining 
details of local community grant applications. 
 
Recommendation –  
 

6



3 
 

That the Local Area Committee approved the community grant as 
outlined to the sum of £500. 
 
[NOTE: Councillors Grajewski and Groves requested that the report be 
amended to remove paragraph five which stated that the decision had 
been ‘unanimously agreed at the working group’ as the working group is 
not decision making] 
 

69. APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES, REGULATORY AND OTHER 
PANELS 
 
The Committee considered a report by the Local Area Manager outlining 
nominations to Outside Bodies, Regulatory and other Panels. 
 
Recommendation -  
  
(1) That the nominations for 2020-21 municipal year appointments 

to regulatory panels and other groups as set out in paragraph 5 
are approved; and 

(2) That the proposed nominations for 2020-21 municipal year 
appointments to Outside Bodies, as set out in appendix A are 
approved. 

 
70. PLANNING APPEALS 

 
The Head of Legal Services reported: 

 
(a) that the following appeals had been lodged:- 
 
85 Hocombe Road, Chandler's Ford, SO53 5QB 
 
Appeal against the non-validation/non-determination of application for two 
storey front and rear extensions, single storey side extension, raising of 
roof and alterations to fenestration. 
 
(b) that the following appeals had been dismissed:- 
 
97 Hocombe Road, Chandler’s Ford, So53 5QB 
 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant consent to undertake work to 
a tree protected by a Tree Preservation Order (T/18/84477). 
 
17 Malcolm Road, Chandler’s Ford, S053 5BH 
 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant consent to undertake work to 
a tree protected by a Tree Preservation Order (T/19/85141). 
 
20 Corinthian Road, Chandler’s Ford, SO53 2AZ 
 
Appeal against the Council’s enforcement action by way of serving a 
notice relating to the alleged breach of planning control in the erection of a 

7



4 
 

fence in excess of 1 metre above ground level and adjacent to the 
highway (H/19/85781). 
 
6 Coultas Road, Chandler’s Ford, SO53 5BB 
 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant planning permission for the 
proposed development of a wooden carport enclosed on three sides (no 
doors) of dimensions 6m depth by 5m wide, with and eaves height of no 
more than 2.4m and a ridge height of no more than 3.7m  (H19/85162). 
 
92 Common Road, Chandler’s Ford, SO53 1HB 
 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant planning permission for the 
demolition of an existing single storey garage and the erection of a new 
dwelling along with associated parking and landscaping.  The appeal for 
costs was also refused (F/18/83667). 
 
M6626 
 

8



qCFH – Chandlers Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee Wednesday 16 
September 2020. 
 
Application Number: F/19/85922 
Case Officer: Craig Morrison 
Received Date: Monday 24 June 2019 
Site Address: 16 KEBLE ROAD, CHANDLER'S FORD, EASTLEIGH, SO53 3DS 
Applicant: K Warren 
Proposal: Erection of 4no. four bedroom detached dwellings with associated 

garages and hard & soft landscaping following demolition of 
existing bungalow. 
 

Recommendation:  Delegate to the Head of Housing and Development to Secure 
the Following 
 

- Mitigation of the Impact of Nitrates on the River Itchen SAC 
and Solent and Southampton Water SPA.  

 
Then PERMIT Subject to the following Conditions. 

 
CONDITIONS AND REASONS 
 
1 
 
 

The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years from the date of 
this decision. 
 
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
  
 

2 
 
 

The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with the 
following plans numbered: P-18-079 01-05-002A, P18-079 02-02-001A, P18-079 02-
02-002E, P18-079 02-02-003A, P18-079 02-02-004A , P18-079 02-02-005A, P18-079 
02-03-001A,  P18-079 02-05-004C, P18-079 02-05-005A 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 

3 
 
 

No excavation, demolition or development related works shall take place on site until 
an arboricultural method statement and tree protection plan, as per British Standard 
5837:2012 (Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and Construction – 
Recommendations),has been submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA. 
Development shall thereafter proceed in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: to retain and protect the existing trees which form an important part of the 
amenity of the locality. This condition is required prior to commencement of works to 
ensure that damage to trees does not occur during clearance and preparation of the 
site.  
 
  
 

4 
 
 

No construction or demolition work shall start until a Method Statement has been 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Demolition and 
construction work shall only take place in accordance with the approved method 
statement which shall include: 
a) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt generated by demolition and 
construction works, including measures to prevent mud on the highway; 

9

Agenda Item 7



b) a scheme for controlling noise and vibration from demolition and construction 
activities [including details of any piling]; 
c) the arrangements for deliveries associated with all construction works, loading/ 
unloading of plant & materials and restoration of any damage to the highway [including 
vehicle crossovers and grass verges]. 
 
Reason: To limit the impact the development has on the amenity of the locality in 
accordance with Saved Policy 32.ES of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2001 - 
2011). This condition is required prior to commencement to ensure preparatory works 
and clearance of the site do not have a detrimental impact on the amenity of the 
locality.  
 

5 
 
 

No development shall start until details for the sustainable disposal of surface water 
from the development hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall then accord with the 
approved details. 
 
Reason: To ensure satisfactory provision of foul and surface water drainage in 
accordance with Saved Policy 34.ES of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2001 - 
2011) . This condition is required prior to commencement to ensure that construction 
does not prejudice the ability to deliver the most suitable scheme.  
 

6 
 
 

No development shall start until details for the treatment of site boundaries and a 
timetable for their installation have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Planning Authority. The development shall be brought forward in accordance with the 
approved timetable and the development shall not be brought into use until the 
boundary treatment has been fully provided in accordance with the approved details 
and retained thereafter. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity of the locality and to safeguard the 
amenities of neighbouring residents in accordance with Saved Policy 59.BE of the 
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2001 - 2011) and DM1 of the Emerging Eastleigh 
Borough Local Plan (2016 - 2036) . This condition is required prior to commencement 
to ensure that adequate boundary treatments exist prior to the construction work 
starting to provide for an adequate level of amenity for neighbouring occupiers. 
 

7 
 
 

No development above DPC Level shall start until details and samples of the materials 
to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development hereby 
permitted have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 
 
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual appearance in the interest of the amenities of 
the area in accordance with Saved Policy 59.BE of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 
2001 - 2011 and Policy DM1 of the Emerging Eastleigh Local Plan (2016 - 2036). 
 

8 
 
 

No development above DPC Level shall start until a landscaping scheme has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall 
cover all hard & soft landscaping including trees  The works shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved plans in the first planting season following the 
occupation of the final dwelling hereby approved and to the appropriate British 
Standard. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity of the locality and to safeguard the 
amenities of neighbouring residents in accordance with Saved Policy 59.BE of the 

10



Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2001 - 2011) and Policy DM1 of the Emerging Eastleigh 
Borough Local Plan (2016 - 2036). 
 

9 
 
 

No development above DPC Level shall start until a landscape management plan and 
maintenance schedule for a period of 5 years following the occupation of the final 
dwelling of the development approved has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Planning Authority. The landscaping shall thereafter be managed in accordance 
with the approved details. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality in accordance with Saved 
Policy 59.BE of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2001 - 2011) and Policy DM1 of the 
Eastleigh Emerging Local Plan (2016 - 2036) 
 

10 
 
 

For a period of no less than 5 years after planting, any trees or plants which are 
removed, die or become seriously damaged or defective, shall be replaced as soon as 
is reasonably practicable with others of the same species, size and number as 
originally approved in the landscaping scheme. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality in accordance with Saved 
Policy 59.BE of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2001 - 2011) and Policy DM1 of the 
Eastleigh Emerging Local Plan (2016 - 2036) 
 

11 
 
 

No substantive external lighting shall be installed except in accordance with a lighting 
strategy that has first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
  
Reason: to ensure the safety of future occupiers is balanced against the need to 
protect neighbouring occupiers from light pollution in accordance with Saved Policy 
59.BE of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2001 - 2011) and Policy DM1 of the 
Eastleigh Emerging Local Plan (2016 - 2036) 
 

12 
 
 

Prior to the occupation of any dwelling or, in accordance with a timetable to be agreed 
in writing with the Local Planning Authority, as built stage SAP data and as built stage 
water calculator confirming energy efficiency and the predicted internal mains water 
consumption to achieve the following shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority: In respect of energy efficiency, a standard of a site wide 
19% improvement of dwelling emission rate over the target emission rate as set in the 
2013 Building Regulations; In respect of water consumption, a maximum predicted 
internal mains water consumption of 105 litres/person/day. 
 
Reason: To support a comprehensive approach to high quality design across the site; 
in line with the guidance set out in the Government's Ministerial Statement of 25 March 
2015 which states that Local Planning Authorities should, from the date of its 
publication, take into account the government's intentions in the statement and not set 
conditions with requirements above a Code level 4 equivalent 
 

13 
 
 

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until a refuse management 
plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The plan shall include: details of the management company to be set up; the 
employment of a private contractor to collect the refuse; measures to be taken if no 
private contractor is available at any time in the future (such as the employment of a 
person or persons to ensure bins are wheeled to the collection point); and that bins will 
not be stored in the open or at the collection point apart from on the day of collection. 
The refuse management plan shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details, unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

11



 
Reason: To ensure that adequate waste and recycling collection can be provided 
without detriment to the Local Highway Network in accordance with Saved Policy 100.T 
of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2001 - 2011) and Policy DM13 of the Emerging 
Eastleigh Local Plan 2016 - 2036).  
 

14 
 
 

The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with the 
ecological report [Peach Ecology - Reference 0319 Issue 01 Dated 10/08/2020] and all 
recommendations outlined in Section 5.0 of the report shall be implemented prior to 
occupation of the development. 
 
Reason: To protect and enhance biodiversity in accordance with Saved Policy 25.NC 
of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2001 - 2011), Policy DM11 of the Emerging 
Eastleigh Local Plan (2016 - 2036) and guidance contained within the NPPF. 
 

15 
 
 

The first floor windows on the east and west elevations of plot 2 [as marked on the 
approved plan] shall be obscure glazed to Pilkingtons level 3 or equivalent and non-
opening below 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which they are installed. Once 
installed the windows shall be permanently maintained in that condition. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity and privacy of the adjoining residential properties in 
accordance with Saved Policy 59.BE of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2001 - 
2011) and Policy DM1 of the Emerging Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2016 - 2036) 
 

16 
 
 

No unit hereby approved shall be occupied until such time as the garages and parking 
spaces and other service facilities for that unit, including bin stores, cycle stores, 
vehicle turning areas, garden boundary treatments and access paths, have been fully 
provided in accordance with the approved plans. The garages and parking spaces 
shall be retained at all times for residents parking. 
 
Reason: To ensure the parking and other supporting infrastructure is available for 
residents of each unit from the time of first occupation. 
 

17 
 
 

No burning of materials obtained by site clearance or any other source shall take place 
during the demolition, construction and fitting out process. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby properties. 
 

18 
 
 

No construction, demolition or deliveries to the site shall take place during the 
construction period except between the hours of 0800 to 1800 Mondays to Fridays or 
0900 to 1300 on Saturdays and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby dwellings. 
 

19 
 
 

No driven pilling shall take place on the development hereby permitted. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of the occupiers of the nearby dwellings. 
 

20 
 
 

No vegetation clearance shall occur on site during the bird nesting season [between 
1st March & 31st August] unless supervised by an appropriately qualified ecologist. 
 
Reason: To prevent harm to breeding birds in accordance with the habitats and 
species regulations. 
 

21 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning [General Permitted 

12



 
 

Development] Order 2015 [or any order revoking or re-enacting that order with or 
without modification] no development permitted by Part 1 Class A of Schedule 2 of the 
order shall be carried out without the prior written approval of the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenities of the locality and to maintain a good quality 
environment in accordance with Saved Policy 59.BE of the Eastleigh Borough Local 
Plan (2001 - 2011) and Policy DM1 of the Emerging Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 
(2016 - 2036). 
 

22 
 
 

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning [General Permitted 
Development] Order 2015 [or any order re-voking or re-enacting that order with or 
without modification] no gates or obstructions shall be erected along the access road.   
 
Reason: In the interests of Highway Safety and in accordance with Saved Policy 100.T 
of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2001 - 2011) and Policy DM13 of the Emerging 
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2016 - 2036).  
 

 
 
 

Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework (February 2019), Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive approach to 
the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever possible, a positive 
outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a timely manner. 
 

 
 
 

Note to Applicant 
The applicant’s attention is drawn to the requirement within the British Standard ‘Code 
of practice for safe use of cranes’ for crane operators to consult the aerodrome before 
erecting a crane in close proximity to an aerodrome.  This is explained further in Advice 
Note 4, ‘Cranes and Other Construction Issues’, available at http://www.aoa.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2016/09/Advice-Note-4-Cranes-2016.pdf 
  
 

 
 
 
This application has been referred to Committee by Cllrs Grajewski, Atkinson, 
Duguid, Groves and Broadhurst because the application is considered to be 
controversial.   
 
1.0 Description of Application 
 
1.1 Erection of 4no. four bedroom detached dwellings with associated garages 
and hard & soft landscaping following demolition of existing bungalow. 
 
2.0 Site  
 
2.1 16 Keble Road, Chandler’s Ford, Eastleigh SO53 3DS 
 
3.0 Residential Development Density (Net) 
 
3.1 23 Dwellings Per Hectare 
 
4.0 Topography 
 

13

http://www.aoa.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/09/Advice-Note-4-Cranes-2016.pdf
http://www.aoa.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/09/Advice-Note-4-Cranes-2016.pdf


4.1 The part of the site is located on a gentle slope with a fall of approximately 
3 metres across the width of the site (from south-west to north-east) The 
access track which would remain physically unchanged falls by approximately 
1 metre from north to south  
 
5.0 Trees 
 
5.1  The application is supported by a tree survey and arboricultural impact 
assessment which confirms the presence of two on site willow trees in the 
south western side of the site. These two trees are both classified as category 
‘B’  (moderate quality) by the applicant’s arboricultural assessment and are 
both subject to a tree preservation order.  
 
6.0  Boundary Treatment 
 
6.1 Numerous fences surround the site to the north east and western 
boundaries. These vary in height from 1.8m on the western and northern 
boundaries, 1.2m on the eastern boundaries and 1m adjacent to 12 Keble 
Road. The southern boundary consists of a high hedge consisting of fir trees 
and a mixture of brick wall and concrete wall adjacent to The Coachways.  
 
7.0 Site Characteristics 
 
7.1 The site currently contains a single storey dwelling located in the eastern 
part of the site constructed of rendered walls and a tiled roof. The building has 
been subject to numerous alterations including flat roof canopies and 
connection to the single storey outbuilding to the north.  
 
7.2 The site contains an access from Keble Road with a large turning circle 
within the site. There is a shed, greenhouse and a number of raised planters in 
the western portion of the site. It appears that the property has been empty for 
some time and the garden has become overgrown.  
 
8.0 Character of Locality 
 
8.1 The local area comprises a mature residential neighbourhood with a more 
modern development located to the South (The Coachways permitted by 
application Z/40216/000/00 in 2004).  
 
8.2 Keble Road itself consists of mostly inter-war and post war properties with 
a mixture of bungalows, some of which have had dormers added, and two 
storey dwellings. Most properties are detached with some semi-detached 
properties.    
 
8.3 Keble Road has treed verges and spaces between properties allow for 
views of mature trees in the wider area including the existing willow trees on 
the application site.  
 
9.0 Planning History 
 

14



9.1 Recent planning history on this site is limited to tree works to the two 
willow trees on site.  
 
10.0 Representations Received 
 
50 letters received from 32 Addresses. The matters raised are summarised 
below.  
 
Highway Safety and Parking 

- Inadequate Access 
- Maintenance of road 
- Traffic Generation and Highway Safety 
- No visitor parking 
- Access to driveways for existing residents 
- Use of access via the Crossways is unacceptable 
- Access to the site should be from The Crossways 
- Highways Impact from Construction Traffic (including material on the 

highway) 
- Incorrect region used in Traffic Data. 

 
Amenity 

- Air Quality impacts from additional traffic 
- Noise 
- Loss of Privacy 
- Impact on outlook from existing properties 

 
Character and Streetscene 

- Permitted Development would allow for further inappropriate 
development on small plots 

- Materials proposed do not match others in the area 
- Overdevelopment 

 
Trees 

- Trees will require frequent works  
- Damage to protected trees 

 
 
Sewerage and Drainage 

- Difficulties connecting to main sewer 
- Drainage and ground stability impact  

 
Other Matters 
 

- Damage to existing properties and boundary treatments 
- Installation of a telecoms cabinet 
- Loss of Biodiversity 
- Enough building in the area 

 
1 Letter received from Hampshire Swifts requesting swift bricks be 
incorporated into the dwellings proposed 

15



 
11.0 Consultation Responses 
 
11.1 EBC Direct Services – Objection to the use of third party refuse 
collection as we have a statutory duty to collect domestic waste and recycling. 
 
11.2 HCC Highways – No Objection 
 
11.3 Ecology – No Objection 
 
The PEA report is fine and the recommendations in the report should be 
conditioned.  
 
These include precautionary roof tile stripping, vegetation clearance to be 
done outside of bird nesting season, a wildlife sensitive lighting scheme, bird 
and bat roost boxes, hedgehog hibernacula, small mammal access holes in 
any closed board fences, and the wildlife-friendly landscaping 
recommendations.  
 
In addition, because the hedgerows will be in private gardens, a landscape 
management note should be added that the native hedgerows should be 
trimmed on a 3 year rotation (top, and each side in alternate years) to ensure 
a supply of fruit and flowers is always available for wildlife.  
 
The proposed surface water drainage needs to be clarified.  
The Proposed Site Plan (Opt2, rev E, August 2020) shows that details of a 
proprietary soakaway system will be conditioned. The Amended DAS (section 
6.4) (Sept 2019) shows a permeable surface on the shared access and block 
paving to parking and private driveways with a potential soakaway in each 
back garden. What was the original surface water drainage scheme for the 
original property? The existing footprint was 192 m2 and the proposed new 
footprint will be 496 m2 plus paving for drives, parking and shared access. In 
total this appears to cover more than half of the site.  Have drainage 
calculations and soil investigations been done to determine the amount of 
surface water runoff and what system is appropriate for this site? 
 
 
11.4 Natural England – Await Amended Nutrient Budget 
 
11.5 Southampton Airport Safeguarding – No objection subject to note to 
applicant regarding the use of cranes 
 
11.6 Trees – No Objection to amended proposals subject to conditions 
 
12.1 Policy Context:  Designation Applicable to Site 
 

 Within Built-up Area Boundary 

 Within Established Residential Area 

 Within HRA Screening Area 

16



 The site is located outside of but adjacent to the Bournemouth Road 
Special Policy Area.  

 
12.2 Development Plan Saved Policies and Emerging Local Plan Policies 
 

 Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 saved Policies:25.NC 
(Biodiversity), 26.NC (Biodiversity Enhancement), 28.ES (Waste 
Collection and Recycling), 32.ES (Pollution Control), 33.ES (Air 
Quality),34.ES (Energy and Climate Change),36.ES (Lighting), 37.ES 
(Energy and Water Consumption) 59.BE, (Development Criteria), 62.BE 
(Access for People with Disability), 72.H (Housing Densities) 100.T 
(Transport and New Development) 102.T (Access), 104.T (Parking) 

 
Due to the status of the Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2029, 
this plan carries little weight in the determination of this application. 

 
12.3 Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016- 2036: 
 

The 2016-2036 Local Plan was submitted to the Planning Inspectorate on 31st 
October 2018 and the examination concluded in January 2020. The Council 
received the Inspector’s post-Hearing advice on 1 April 2020.  The Council is 
progressing with modifications to the Local Plan to enable its adoption, 
anticipated in late 2020.  Given the status of the Emerging Plan, it is 
considered that overall moderate weight can be attributed to it. The most 
relevant policies are: 
 

 DM1 (General Development Criteria), DM8 (Pollution), DM10 (Water 
and Waste Water),  DM11 (Nature Conservation), DM 13 (General 
Development Criteria – Transport), DM14 (Parking), DM23 (Residential 
Development in Urban Areas), DM32 (Internal Space Standards for 
New Residential Deveopment).  

 
12.4 Supplementary Planning Documents 
 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Quality Places (November 2011) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Parking Standards 
(January 2009) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Environmentally Sustainable 
Development (March 2009) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Planning Obligations (July 2008, 
updated 2010) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Affordable Housing (July 2009) 
 
12.5 National Planning Policy Framework 
 
12.6 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that applications 
for planning permission must be determined in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Para 11 
sets out a general presumption in favour of sustainable development and 
states that development proposals which accord with the development plan 

17



should be approved without delay. Where the development plan is absent, 
silent, or relevant policies are out-of-date planning permission should be 
granted unless the adverse impacts of the development would outweigh the 
benefits; or specific policies in the Framework indicate development should be 
restricted (paragraph 11). Local plan policies that do not accord with the NPPF 
are now deemed to be “out-of-date”. The NPPF requires that due weight 
should be given to relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree 
of consistency with the NPPF. In other words the closer the policies in the plan 
accord to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may be 
given. 
 
12.7 National Planning Practice Guidance  
 
12.8 Where material, this guidance should be afforded weight in the 
consideration of planning applications.  
 
13.0 Policy Commentary 
 
13.1 The above policies and guidance combine to form the criteria against 
which this application will be assessed with particular regard to the Principle of 
Development, The Impact on Amenity, Streetscene and Character, Highways, 
Ecology and Protected Species, Refuse Storage and Collection, Drainage, 
Noise and Air Quality, Planning Obligations, Sustainability Measures and 
Climate Change and Equalities Implications.  
 
14.0 Comment on Consultation Responses and Representations 
Received 
 
14.1 Concern has been raised on any damage that could be caused as a 
result of the failure of foul or surface drainage. The details of both of these will 
be covered and it would be the responsibility of the future owner(s) of the site 
to ensure that these are maintained in good working order. Any damage 
caused by any part of the construction to neighbouring properties would be a 
civil matter between property owners.  
 
14.2 A question has been raised on who would maintain the roads once 
completed. The roads cannot be built to adoptable standards and would 
therefore remain private and maintenance would be the responsibility of the 
future property owners.  
 
14.3 Concern was raised that section 10.1 of the Transport Statement did not 
refer to the correct site, this has been amended, while this error was noted the 
findings of the transport statement are accepted by The Highways Authority 
(HCC).  
 
 
15.0 Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative 
Background 
 

18



15.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 
states:- 

"If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 
determination to be made under the planning Acts the determination 
must be made in accordance with the plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise." 

 

15.2 Policy 59.BE of the Local Plan requires development to take full and 
proper account of the context of the site including the character and 
appearance of the locality and be appropriate in mass, scale, materials, 
layout, design and siting.  It also requires a high standard of landscape 
design, have a satisfactory means of access and layout for vehicles, cyclist 
and pedestrians, make provision for refuse and cycle storage and avoid 
unduly impacting on neighbouring uses through overlooking, loss of light, 
loss of outlook, noise and fumes. 

 

15.3 The proposal is considered to comply with relevant Development Plan 
policies as set out in the assessment below.  

 
16.0 The Principle of Development 
 
16.1 The application site lies within the Chandler’s Ford Urban Edge and 
therefore the principle of development and redevelopment is acceptable in 
principle subject to other detailed and technical considerations. The site lies 
within flood zone 1 (of least risk of flooding) and therefore the risk of flooding is 
not considered to be a constraint to the principle of development of the site.  
 
17.0 The Impact on Amenity 
 
17.1 Saved Policy 59.BE and Policy DM1 require development to avoid unduly 
interfering, disturbing or conflicting with neighbouring uses with particular 
reference made to noise, fumes, dust, overlooking, loss of daylight, loss of 
outlook, vibration, or from floodlighting or security lighting.  
 
17.2 Noise, fumes, dust and vibration would only likely arise during 
construction which can be controlled via a Construction Management Plan 
condition. Floodlighting and security lighting can equally be controlled by 
condition to ensure that light spill does not disturb neighbouring occupiers. It is 
therefore necessary to consider the remaining three issues in further detail to 
ensure that the design of the proposal would not result in a detrimental impact 
on neighbouring occupiers.  
 
Overlooking 
 
17.3 The majority of the site is enclosed by existing boundary treatment but 
with some parts of the site, particularly the north-east corner on the boundary 
with 22 Keble Road. The fence along the access road is low in places and 

19



allows views into the neighbouring gardens. A condition is recommended to 
secure strengthening of the boundary treatments to ensure that the 
neighbours are secured an appropriate level of privacy from movements within 
the site. Given the narrow access and proximity to neighbouring gardens it is 
considered to be reasonable and proportionate to require updated boundary 
treatment to be agreed and installed prior to the commencement of 
development to reduce the level of impact on neighbours from the construction 
process.  
 
17.4 Some filtered overlooking would be possible to the rear of the gardens of 
8 – 22 Keble Road however the distance between the closest window and the 
boundary would be 6 metres and the level of overlooking in this case would 
not be an unusual situation in a suburban setting. Mutual overlooking between 
properties and gardens already exists in Keble Road and it is not considered 
that the additional properties would have a significant impact on the ability of 
existing residents to enjoy their gardens.  
 
17.5 The adopted Quality Places SPD sets a minimum window to window 
distance of 22 metres to the rear windows of properties allowing for a reduced 
standard where the windows face the public realm. In the case of the 
properties in the crossways the majority of properties meet the 22 metre 
standard. Where plot 2 projects further south than the others it achieves 20 
metres which, given its view towards the front bedrooms of the properties in 
the Crossways which have some visibility from the public realm this is 
considered to be an acceptable separation distance and is supported by the 
guidance contained in the Quality Places SPD. The properties in Keble Road 
are in excess of 25 metres and a distance of 23 metres is achieved between 
plot 1 and 75a Bournemouth Road which are in excess of the guidance 
contained within the Quality Places SPD. It is not considered that there is an 
unacceptable impact of overlooking on any neighbouring properties or gardens 
from the proposal.  
 
Outlook 
 
17.6 Given the distances between neighbouring properties (a minimum of 20 
metres), the proposal is not considered to result in an overbearing impact on 
any neighbouring properties.  
 
 
Loss of Light.  
 
17.7 Due to the orientation of the properties in relation to the angle of the sun 
it is only necessary to consider the impact on properties to the north, east and 
west which are primarily properties in Keble Road. The properties in Keble 
Road have long gardens meaning that the nearest properties are in excess of 
20 metres from the boundary of the site. Given the scale of the development 
loss of light would not have a material impact on these properties. There are 
mature trees within the gardens of 18 – 22 Keble Road such that any loss of 
light from the proposed dwellings would be limited.  
 

20



17.8 Some loss of light would occur, particularly in the winter months to the 
end of the gardens of 10-12 and 22 Keble Road however these properties also 
have substantial gardens and any light lost would be to the ends of the 
gardens and leave much of the garden unaffected. The loss of light that would 
result from the proposals is not considered to result in a significant impact on 
the amenities of any neighbouring occupiers.  
 
Future Occupiers 
 
17.9 The proposed dwellings are orientated such that overlooking between 
properties is limited and there would not be significant levels of overshadowing 
between properties.  
 
17.10 All properties have gardens that exceed 60% of their residential 
floorspace. Where plots 1 and 2 have large trees within the gardens these 
properties have much larger gardens as required by the Quality Places SPD. 
Given their orientation, notwithstanding the shadow cast from the trees the 
occupiers of these plots would still enjoy sufficient usable space and light 
levels within their gardens. 
 
17.11 All plots in terms of the Nationally Described Space Standards would be 
considered as 4 bedroomed 7 person dwellings. At 124 square metres all plots 
would therefore exceed the minimum required floorspace of 115 square 
metres as required by Emerging Policy DM32.  
 
Amenity Summary 
 
17.12 As a whole the proposal has an acceptable impact on neighbouring 
properties in terms of overlooking, loss of light and outlook and provides for 
adequate levels of amenity for future occupiers of the proposed properties. 
Matters of noise, fumes, dust and vibration during construction and light spill 
post construction can all be controlled by condition if permission is granted.  
 
 
18.0 Streetscene and the Character of the Area 
Saved Policy 59.BE requires the development to take full and proper account 
of the context of the area.  
 
18.1 The development would be seen in glimpsed views from Keble Road, as 
it sits on slightly higher ground however the spacing of properties and 
integration of the existing mature trees within and adjacent to the site would 
soften views of the properties such that the properties would integrate 
successfully into the surrounding townscape.  
 
18.2 The plot sizes of the properties vary between approximately 225 and 390 
square meters which is larger than the average property plot in The 
Crossways (120 and 300 square metres) but smaller than those plots in Keble 
Road which tend to be between 500 and 600 square metres.  
 

21



18.3 The design of the properties is modern in style however their form and 
scale is traditional, with simple elevations and pitched, gabled roofs such that 
the more modern appearance of the properties would be most apparent from 
within the site and would not visibly jar with properties in Keble Road or those 
within The Crossways which take a more modern appearance in any case. 
While the majority of properties in Keble Road are brick faced there are 
examples of rendered properties within the streetscene and therefore the 
materials proposed are not alien to the wider area and given the varied form 
and style of properties in the area it is considered that a different style of 
property could successfully integrate with the surrounding area.   
 
19.0 Highways Impact and Parking 
 
19.1 Saved Policy 100.T requires development to be well served by public 
transport, cycling and walking. The site is located within a short walk and cycle 
of Bournemouth Road and Leigh Road which provides access to bus services 
and local shopping facilities and is approximately 10 minutes walk from 
Chandlers Ford Railway Station. Accordingly it is considered that the site is 
situated in a sustainable location which provides alternatives to the private car 
to access other destinations thereby minimizing the development’s impact on 
the existing transport network.  
 
19.2 While the proposal is not considered likely to generate large numbers of 
journeys for the purposes of criterion iii of Saved Policy 100.T the applicant 
has provided a transport assessment which shows that the development is 
likely to generate a total of 3 vehicle movements in the AM peak (2 additional) 
and 2 movements in the PM Peak (1 additional).  
 
19.3 Concern has been raised by objectors regarding the suitability of the 
access route as it is capable only of allowing a vehicle to travel in 1 direction. 
The access is 42 metres in length and has a minimum width of 3.2 metres with 
the majority of the access being between 3.4 and 3.7 in width. It has been 
suggested that the development would be better accessed from The 
Crossways. Other comments have been received stating that an access from 
The Crossways would be unacceptable, in any case the applicant has 
confirmed that the development cannot be accessed from the Crossways as 
there is an area of land that is outside of the applicant’s control between the 
boundary of the site and carriage of The Crossways.  
 
19.4 It is accepted that there is the potential for conflict between vehicles using 
the existing single access track travelling in either direction along the access 
route which measures 42 metres in length. The County Highways Officer no 
longer raises a concern with regards to the access following a reduction from 5 
to 4 units on site. In the County’s original comment a preference was 
expressed  for the track to widened to allow 2 cars width at the access onto 
Keble Road to stop off the road to allow another car to pass with a further 
passing place further. However, it was acknowledged that the relatively low 
traffic movements associated with the development would not result in harm to 
the highway network if vehicles paused at the access to allow another vehicle 
to exit.  

22



 
19.5 The applicant does not own any land either side of the access track and 
therefore cannot widen the access at any point. There is sufficient width 
however to allow for a vehicle to travel in either direction while being able to 
safely pass a pedestrian.  
 
19.6 The low numbers of vehicle movements shown in the transport 
assessment (a total of 3 movements in the am peak and 2 in the pm peak) 
show that the chance of two vehicles meeting along the access track is low.  
However it is accepted that in some cases a vehicle may have to reverse back 
out onto Keble Road . Given that the majority of properties on Keble Road do 
not have space to turn within their curtilages it is considered that in the event 
that a vehicle had to reverse back out onto Keble Road that this would not 
present an unacceptable risk to highway safety. On balance therefore while a 
passing place and a wider access adjacent to Keble Road would be preferable 
it is not considered that the arrangement would lead to an unacceptable 
impact on highway safety.  
 
19.7 Saved Policy 104.T requires residential development to comply with the 
standards as set out within the adopted Residential Parking Standards SPD. 
This requires 4 bedroomed houses to provide 3 car parking spaces as well as 
3 visitor spaces (0.2% of the total), garages must be 3 metres x 6 metres to 
count as a car parking space. The proposal shows a suitably sized garage and 
2 car parking spaces per dwelling. In terms of visitor spaces there is a visitor 
space adjacent to the parking for plot 2 and 2 informal visitor spaces opposite 
plot 3. In terms of spaces the proposal complies with the standards and 
therefore Policy 104.T. HCC highways and Hampshire Fire and Rescue have 
been asked to confirm that the visitor spaces proposed allow for sufficient 
space for vehicles and emergency vehicles to turn within the site and an 
update will be provided to members on this matter.  
 
20.0 Ecology and Protected Species 
 
20.1 Due to the condition of the property and the overgrown nature of the 
garden a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal has been submitted by the 
applicant. The report found that in relation to bats, while there were some 
potential access points in the existing building, following emergence survey 
work no bats were found to be using the building but some were seen to 
commute across and around the site. It is considered that the development is 
therefore unlikely to adversely affect bats however bat roosting features 
should be incorporated into the new buildings.   
 
20.2 In relation to reptiles, the nature of the site with overgrown lawns, 
hedgerow, vegetable plots and compost heaps are suitable habitats for 
reptiles. A phase II survey was therefore completed which found no evidence 
of reptiles using the site. It was concluded that this was likely due to the site’s 
historic separation from other suitable reptile habitats, no further assessment 
is required therefore.  
 

23



20.3 The report considers that the possibility of Great Crested Newts or 
dormice using the site is unlikely but that birds and hedgehogs may be using 
the site. Careful clearance of the site is therefore recommended with steps set 
out in the report. The existing conifer hedge will also be replaced with a native 
multi-species hedgerow in order to provide bio-diversity net gain.  A condition 
recommends the implementation of the recommendations of the report in 
relation to protections and enhancements of biodiversity. 
 
20.4 It is considered as a result that the application has adequately assessed 
the impacts on biodiversity and protected species and would not result in a 
likely impact on protected species and with the conditions recommended 
would lead to an enhancement in biodiversity as required by Saved Policy 
25.NC of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2001 – 2011), Policy DM11 of the 
Emerging Local Plan and Paragraph 104 (d) of the NPPF.  
 
20.5 The site lies outside of the 5.6km buffer for recreation impact on 
overwintering birds in the Solent SPA however the proposal would result in an 
increase in nitrogen entering the Solent via Chickenhall Waste Water 
Treatment Works and thereby affecting the conservation objectives of the 
Solent and Southampton Water SPA. The applicant has agreed to mitigate this 
via the scheme provided by Eastleigh Borough Council removing agricultural 
land from the council’s land holdings at Horton heath from use and will be 
required to make a financial contribution of £4,500 (£13,500 in total for a net 
increase of 3 dwellings) in line with the council’s adopted and published 
strategy. 
 
20.6 Taking into account the existing use of the Horton Heath site the offset of 
the 8.7 Kg of Nitrogen that would be generated by the development, 0.37 
hectares of the site would be required in mitigation. The applicant has 
confirmed that  This land is within the control of Eastleigh Borough Council as 
the competent authority for the purposes of Habitats and Species Regulation 
2017 and therefore there is reasonable certainty that this land will be kept out 
of agricultural use in perpetuity and the proposal would not result in a 
significant adverse effect on the Solent and Southampton Water SPA.  
 
20.7 A Habitats Regulations Assessment has been completed and the 
recommendation is subject to receiving no objection from Natural England on 
the basis of Nitrates impact on the Solent and Southampton Water SPA.  
 
21.0 Trees 
 
21.1 The application has been amended to reduce the number of dwellings to 
four, principally to allow for the retention of the two willow trees on site which 
are subject to Tree Preservation Order. Following the changes the Council’s 
Tree Officer is satisfied that the construction of the dwellings does not 
prejudice the retention of the trees. The trees would remain within the gardens 
of plots 1 and 2 which can sometimes lead to pressure for additional works or 
removal. However, as set out in the amenity section the gardens of plots 1 and 
2 are larger than the minimum requirements and given the additional 

24



protection of the Tree Preservation Order it is not considered that the 
management required would lead to their early demise or removal.  
 
21.2 Permitted development rights have been removed from the proposed 
dwellings, both to protect garden sizes and to ensure that any further works to 
the dwellings would not have a detrimental impact on the roots of the trees.  
 
22.0 Refuse Storage and Collection 
 
22.1 The applicant has been unable to demonstrate that the council’s waste 
and recycling collection vehicles would be able to collect waste from within the 
site. The applicant has therefore elected to secure a private waste collection 
that would use smaller vehicles that could collect from within the site.  
 
22.2 Whilst this is not the authorities preferred option it has been supported by 
planning appeals and it is considered reasonable and enforceable way to deal 
with this matter by a condition requiring the applicant to submit details of a 
waste and recycling strategy that would thereafter be operational in perpetuity.  
 
23.0 Drainage 
 
23.1 The application site lies in flood zone 1 and therefore at lowest risk from 
flooding however the access is noted to be in an area at risk of surface water 
flooding. This is not considered to be a barrier to development, given that this 
area is already laid to hardstanding and a condition for drainage is 
recommended if permission is to be granted.  
 
24.0 Noise and Air Quality  
 
24.1 Saved Policy 32.ES states that development will only be permitted if they 
have been designed to control the impact of air, land or water pollution to an 
acceptable level. It is accepted that without proper management that noise, 
dust and water pollution can become issues during construction. A condition 
requiring a Construction Environmental Management Plan is therefore 
recommended.  
 
24.2 During operation it is not considered that the addition of 3 additional 
dwellings in an established residential area would unacceptable impacts in 
terms of noise air or water pollution. Concern has been raised regarding the 
impact of odours if sewerage systems were to fail due to the need to use a 
pump system to connect to the mains system in Keble Road. The application 
shows the foul water system connecting to the existing mains system in Keble 
Road. The specification and maintenance of such a system is dealt with at 
Building Regulation Stage at which stage the developer will have to 
demonstrate that the system is fit for purpose and has sufficient capacity.  
 
24.3 It is acknowledged that there would be an increase in traffic using the 
access which runs between 12 and 18 Keble Road which currently has an 
approximately 1.2 metre fence on the boundary. In order to provide sufficient 
privacy and noise protection the applicant has agreed to increase the height of 

25



the boundary treatment in this area to 1.8 metres. For visual amenity purposes 
the preferred option would be for a wall with a fence on top and it is 
recommended to secure the details of these by condition.  
 
 
25.0 Planning obligation /considerations 
 
24.1 In line with ministerial statements and case law this development for 3 
additional dwellings cannot require contributions towards affordable housing or 
tariff style contributions towards matters such as transport infrastructure. 
Excluded from this are contributions towards mitigating the direct impacts of 
the development in terms of the impact of nutrients on the Southampton and 
Solent Special Protection Area and SAC. A contribution of £13,500 must be 
resolved by direct payment or secured by legal agreement before any 
permission is granted.  
 
26.0 Equalities Implications 
 

26.1 Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 created the public sector equality 
duty. Section149  states:- 
 
(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to 
the need to   (a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any 
other conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act; (b) advance equality of 
opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 
 
When making policy decisions, the Council must take account of the equality 
duty and in particular any potential impact on protected groups.  
 
26.2 It is considered that this application does not raise any equality 
implications. 
 
27.0 Sustainability Measures and Climate Change: 
 
27.1 National legislation and guidance, together with local policy ensure that 
all planning applications are tested for their resilience to and impact on the 
environment. Details elsewhere in this report set out the Climate Change and 
Environmental implications of this application and their proposed mitigations. 
 
27.2 The NPPF (paragraphs 95-99), Saved Policies 34.ES and 37.ES of the 
Local Plan, and emerging Policies S1, DM2 and DM3 of the submitted 
Local Plan require development to be sustainable in terms of resource use, 
climate change and energy use. In March 2015 a Ministerial Statement 
announced that the Code for Sustainable Homes would cease to be applied 
to new development, although the requirement to achieve the Code’s levels 
for energy efficiency and water consumption remains. A condition requiring 

26



the new development to meet these requirements can reasonably be 
imposed and is recommended accordingly.   

 
 
28.0 Conclusion 
 
28.1 The proposal is acceptable in principle, and whilst the access to the site 
is via a single width driveway it is not considered that this would result in a 
highway safety impact that would warrant refusal of the application. The 
proposal provides satisfactory levels of amenity to existing neighbouring 
properties and future occupiers and would not result in a detrimental impact on 
existing trees on site which can be satisfactorily retained within the design of 
the scheme.  
 
27.2 It is recommended that the decision to permit this scheme is delegated to 
the Head of Housing and Development to allow forthe resolution of mitigation 
of nutrient impacts on the River Itchen SAC and Solent and Southampton 
Water SPA and then Permitted subject to Conditions.  
 

27



This page is intentionally left blank



91a
83

85

1

7

6

3

2b

1a

36

1

30

12

2a

77

14

12

2a

63

6

51

6
15

10
0

4

73

12

4

11a

14

28

87a

3

7

85a

13
0

16

60

1b

15

13
6

CL
O

SE

NORTH
 E

ND

SHAFTESBURY

THE CROSSWAYS

BR
O

O
K 

CL
O

SE

MEADOW GROVE

AVENUE

37.5m

36.0m

16

10
6

6

31

3

26

21

1

11
8

Club

El

SOUTHDENE ROAD

23
23

a

11

12

Hampshire Care

1

26

3

21

9

14

13
2a

75

75a

21

19

1

87

2

39

10
6

1

10

25

25a

55

17

2

1a

(Childrens Nursery)

12

8

13
2

18

30

52

27

11

KEBLE CLOSE

KEBLE ROAD

53

1 61

11

11

6

49

NORTHDENE ROAD

36.6m

F/19/85922

07/09/2020

16 Keble Road,

Date:

Address:

Scale:  1:1250

Chandlers Ford. SO53 3DS

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)© Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)© Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)© Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)© Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)© Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)

29



This page is intentionally left blank



CFH – Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee, 16 September 
2020 
 
Application Number: H/20/87573 
Case Officer: Kitty Budden 
Received Date: 12/02/2020 
Site Address: 32 Randall Road, Chandler’s Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 5AL 
Applicant: Michael Ingram 
Proposal: Two storey front, side, rear extensions; and single storey 

side and rear extension and addition of flue (amended 
description) 

 
 
Recommendation:   

 
 
Grant planning permission 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
CONDITIONS AND REASONS: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years 
from the date of this decision.  Reason: To comply with Section 91 of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance 
with the following plans numbered: 2552/02 01 Rev G; 2552/02 02 Rev 
A. Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 

3. The materials to be used must match as closely as possible those 
shown on plan 2552/02 01 Rev G, re-using the original roof tiles were 
possible. Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual relationship of the 
new development to the existing, and to the surrounding area. 
 

4. No construction or demolition work shall start until a Method Statement 
has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority. Demolition and construction work shall only take place in 
accordance with the approved method statement which shall include: 
a) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt generated by 
demolition and construction works, including measures to prevent mud 
on the highway; 
b) a scheme for controlling noise and vibration from demolition and 
construction activities [including details of any piling, if necessary]; 
c) the arrangements for deliveries associated with all construction 
works, loading/ unloading of plant & materials and restoration of any 
damage to the highway [including vehicle crossovers and grass 
verges]. 
Reason: To limit the impact the development has on the amenity of the 
locality. 
 

31

Agenda Item 8



5. No construction, demolition or deliveries to the site shall take place 
during the construction period except between the hours of 0800 to 
1800 Mondays to Fridays or 0900 to 1300 on Saturdays and not at all 
on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Reason: To protect the amenities of the 
occupiers of nearby dwellings. 
 

6. No burning of materials obtained by site clearance or any other source 
shall take place during the demolition, construction and fitting out 
process. Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby 
properties. 
 

7. The single storey flat roof rear projection shall not be used as a balcony 
without the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.  Reason: In 
the interests of amenity for the neighbouring property, no. 30 Randall 
Road. 
 

8. The development must accord with the arboricultural report dated 7th 
April 2020. No excavation, demolition or development related works 
shall commence until the tree protection fencing and ground protection 
has been installed as per the tree protection plan contained within the 
report. Once installed, no access by vehicles or placement of goods, 
chemicals, fuels, soil or other materials shall take place within the 
protected area. Tree protection measures shall be retained in their 
approved form for the duration of the work. Reason: To retain and 
protect the existing trees which form an important part of the amenity of 
the locality. 
  
Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework (February 2019), Eastleigh Borough 
Council takes a positive approach to the handling of development 
proposals so as to achieve, whenever possible, a positive outcome and 
to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a timely manner. 

 
Report: 

 
1) This application has been referred to Committee at the request of 

Councillors.  
 

Site Characteristics and Character of the Locality 
 

2) The application site comprises a large residential plot containing a two-
storey dwelling with good sized front garden area, on-curtilage parking 
and a substantial rear garden.  The property remains in its original form 
and architecturally displays one of several house designs originating 
from when the dwellings in Randall Road were first constructed.  The 
distinct character of these designs has been diluted over time as a wide 
range of alterations and extensions have taken place along the length 
of the street. 

 

32



3) The road has an attractive character with generally large detached 
dwellings in large plots, sat back from the highway with front gardens 
and parking areas.  The area contains many mature trees, often in rear 
gardens, and the presence of wide verges, limited street furniture, front 
gardens and distance between opposite houses gives a spacious and 
open character.  The building line is fairly uniform and the spacing 
between dwellings varies.  Along the length of the street there is a 
mixture of elevational treatments comprising white render and different 
colours of red brick.  Roof tiles are predominantly red clay. 

 
Description of Application 

 
4) The proposal comprises two storey front, side, and rear extensions; a 

single storey side extension and a small single storey rear extension; 
and the addition of a flue. 

 
5) Three gable front projections are created with the centre gable 

projecting to the same depth as the existing gable.  To the south, a 
gable projection replaces an existing small dormer, projecting approx. 
0.4m beyond the central gable at first floor and 0.8m at ground floor.  
The porch canopy projects approx. 1.5m beyond the first floor. 

 
6) To the north, a two storey side extension projects approx. 1.9m beyond 

the existing side elevation (towards no. 30 Randall Road) and forward 
approx. 0.8m. The roof design has been amended to hip the roof away 
from the neighbouring property and the ridge line is raised to match the 
existing main roof ridge.  A flue projects approx. 0.4m above the main 
ridge.    

 
7) South of the main body of the house, a single storey side extension 

projects approx. 1.6m towards the neighbouring property, no. 34 
Randall Road.  The roof design has been amended to include a half 
hip.  This extension extends approx. 6.7m back from the front elevation 
and then continues as a flat roof extension with roof lantern approx. 
4.5m further. 

 
8) To the rear, a two storey extension is proposed across the width of the 

main house to a depth of approx. 4.0m, a reduction in depth from the 
original proposal (approx. 5.3m).  The roof design has also been 
amended to hip the roof back from the rear and in from the sides.  In 
addition, the depth of the extension closest to no. 30 has been reduced 
by a further metre at first floor, creating a flat roof element.  French 
doors are proposed with a Juliet balcony. 

 
9) The proposals increase the number of bedrooms by one to five, create 

additional living space at ground floor including study and open plan 
kitchen/dining/family area and larger garage; and increase the internal 
floor area by 111%. (145 sq.m to 306 sq.m, an increase of 161 sq. m.)  

 

33



10) The application is accompanied by the necessary application form and 
plans, together with a street scene plan and an arboricultural report.  
These documents have been updated during the course of the 
application where necessary.   

 
11) The proposal has been screened out under the Town and Country 

Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) (England) Regulations 
2011 due to the nature of the proposed development.  In addition, 
screening under the Habitats Directive was not required due to the 
nature and scale of development. 

 
Relevant Planning History 

 
12) No planning applications have been submitted in relation to this site.  A 

number of applications for tree works have been previously submitted, 
the most recent of which in 2002. 

 
Representations Received 

 
13) 15 letters of objection were received to the original proposals, which 

included 3 duplicate representations.  Letters were received from 
residents in the Randall Road and the surrounding Nichol and 
Lakewood Roads, and further afield in Broxburn Close.   

 
14) Objectors raised the following points (summarised): 

 
- Not in keeping due to modern design and use of white and grey; 
- Materials choice at odds with street character; 
- Design and appearance not compatible with character of adjacent 

properties; 
- Impact on street scene; 
- Does not reflect existing character; 
- Does not reflect Character Area Appraisal guidance; 
- Would spoil the unique charm of the road; 
- Inconsiderate and unneighbourly development; 
- Important that development fits with character and does not have an 

adverse effect of Randall Road neighbours; 
- While original houses are too small for modern standards, and so have 

been extended extensively, the building line has been maintained.  
Extending beyond the building line will destroy the rural character of the 
street; 

- Could extend further to the rear to avoid extending into small front 
garden; 

- Will impact neighbour’s outlook; 
- Will be close to neighbouring properties; 
- Separation between buildings identified as characteristic of local 

distinctiveness in Character Area Appraisal; 
- Will set precedent; 
- Loss of light and outlook to landing window; 
- Impact on light to landing; bathroom; stairwell; hallway; WC; 

34



- Believe proposal may constitute an infringement of rights afforded by 
the Prescription Act of 1832; 

- Impact on view and light to side kitchen window; 
- Loss of light and sunlight to front and rear garden; 
- Loss of outlook; 
- Rear extension is intrusive;  
- Rear extension is dominating; 
- Overbearing affect to rear aspect of property; 
- Over-development due to proximity to boundaries; 
- Overall size not appropriate for width of plot and constitutes 

overdevelopment; 
- Significant increase in footprint; 
- Development on this scale would not be commensurate with the size 

and character of the existing property or the surrounding properties; 
- Potential tree damage; 
- Porch not shown on plans; 
- Overshadowing; 
- Question whether extensions or demolition and replace; 
- Numbers 30 and 34 impacted by construction phase, eg. scaffolding 

location, material movements to rear; 
- Inadequate space at boundary to allow for servicing; 
- Cannot accommodate off-road parking for a family that will later have 

teenagers with cars. 
 

15) A number of representations state that there would be no objection to 
improving the property if it was more in keeping with the character of 
the property and the street. 

 
16) 1 letter of support was also received, stating: 

 
- Completely support application; 
- Large number of houses have been extended and altered so in no way 

would this look out of place; 
- Great to see young families living in these houses and making full use 

of their property and its potential; 
- Proposals are not imposing on neighbouring properties any more than 

other houses in the road; 
- Will greatly add to the character of this beautiful area. 

 
17) Following the submission of revised plans, a re-consultation was 

undertaken.  25 representations were received, 21 of which were 
objections.  two residents sent in two letters of objection, expanding on 
initial comments.  Letters were received from residents in Randall Road 
and nearby roads, and further away in, for example, Keepers Close and 
Rosemoor Grove.  Representations were also received from residents 
in Cheltenham and Lyme Regis who stated that they have relatives in 
Randall Road. 

 
18) In addition to issues previously raised, the following comments have 

also been made: 

35



- Note the steps that have been taken to address concerns raised by 
objectors, don’t feel they go far enough; 

- Discrepancy in plans showing balcony on elevations and not shown on 
floor plans; 

- Suggest view modern building on the corner of Randall and Nichol 
Road and consider impact of such a building in Randall Road; 

- Property deeds specify that building line must be retained; 
- Shocking that the two of the three front gables will project approx. 80cm 

beyond the building line and the porch canopy a further 80cm; 
- Original plans for nos. 28, 34 and 36 show bay windows and porch 

canopies within building line.  Nos. 30 and 32 designed with integral 
porches therefore clear realisation on part of developer that forward 
extensions would not suit aesthetic of road; 

- Impact on light levels to study; 
- More suitable to Hocombe Road or Lakewood Road due to plot size; 
- Due to smaller plots, properties in Randall Road positioned closer 

together then those in Lakewood or Hocombe; 
- More suitable for larger plot; 
- Out of scale with other properties in street; 
- Nearly all houses in Randall Road have been extended.  The fact area 

is designated as a Character Area is recognition of the work of the 
original planners and sensitivity applied by all with later extensions; 

- Question how walls can be constructed close to boundaries; 
- Submitted street view is misleading as does not show set back to study 

extension; 
- Flat roof element to rear gives the ability to build a balcony at any time 

that will overlook garden; 
- Very hurt that new neighbours would move into the road and purport to 

appreciate the beauty of the area but wish to change it completely and 
destroy the environment that have enjoyed for so long; 

- Better for residents to move if they need space rather than impacting 
neighbours and character of the street; 

- Danger if local plans are ignored that all towns, villages and cities will 
not be protected from inappropriate development; 

- Residents will park on road with inherent danger of being on a blind 
bend; 

- Electric car charging points are set to be a necessity and 
parking/garaging on the property should be important to the occupier; 

- Front garden already probably smallest in road and to reduce further 
seems unnecessary. 

 
19) 4 letters of support have been received, with the following comments: 

 
- Aware of concerns of some in the community however believe the 

proposed extensions would be a notable improvement to the property 
and create an enviable family home; 

- Wonderful to see young families moving in, breathing new life into the 
community and making their house their own; 

- Consider benefit to all when people invest in properties and keep them 
up to date; 

36



- Revised design and reduced size and scale further minimising impact 
on neighbours; 

- Randall Road is full of sizeable properties, so don’t see how these 
plans can have an adverse impact on character or appearance of 
street; 

- Lots of extensions of this style in Hiltingbury and sure will be many 
more to come as reflects how people what to live these days; 

- Proposals great improvement to property and will enhance quality of 
residences in local neighbourhood; 

- Tasteful refurbishment and well considered extension; 
- In keeping with many adjoining properties; 
- Most of complaints in objections are unjustified and should be 

quantified; 
- Proposed plan almost falls within permitted development; 
- Applicants and architect have designed something fitting, modern and 

eco-friendly which meets all Local Plan and National Framework, and 
Character Area criteria; 

- This area is under change, can’t stop progress; 
- Tasteful development in keeping with street; 
- Very similar to other developments in road; 
- Noted leaflet dropping in the neighbourhood to generate objections.  

 
Consultation Responses 

 
20) Chandler’s Ford Parish Council – no comments received. 

 
21) Tree Consultant – Following the submission of arboricultural 

information, I am satisfied with the proposed level of tree protection.  No 
objection, subject to a condition requiring compliance with the submitted 
arboricultural report. 

 
22) Head of Environmental Health – no comments received. 

 
Policy Context and Designations Applicable to Site 

 
- Within Built-up Area Boundary 
- Within Established Residential Area 
- Blanket Tree Preservation Order (TPO 58) 

 
Development Plan Saved Policies and Emerging Local Plan 
Policies 

 
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011) Saved Policies: 

 
- 25.NC (Promotion of biodiversity); 
- 34.ES (Reduction of greenhouse gases/ Sustainable construction); 
- 37.ES (Energy efficiency); 
- 59.BE (Design criteria). 

 
Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, July 2014 

37



 
23) The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 was submitted for 

examination in July 2014 but the Inspector concluded that insufficient 
housing was being provided for in the Plan and that it was unsound.  
While this has not been withdrawn and remains a material 
consideration, it can therefore be considered to have extremely limited 
weight in the determination of this application. 

 
Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036 

 
24) The 2016-2036 Local Plan was submitted to the Planning Inspectorate 

on 31st October 2018 and the examination hearings concluded in 
January 2020. The Council received the Inspector’s post-Hearing 
advice on 1 April 2020.  The Council is progressing with modifications 
to the Local Plan to enable its adoption, anticipated in late 2020/early 
2021.  Given the status of the Emerging Plan, it is considered that 
overall moderate weight can be attributed to it. The most relevant 
policies are: 

 
Strategic policies: 
- S1 (Sustainable Development); 
- S2 (Promotion of New Development). 

 
Development Management policies: 
- DM1 (General Development Criteria); 
- DM2 (Environmentally Sustainable Development); 
- DM3 (Adapting to Climate Change); 
- DM11 (Nature Conservation).  

 
Supplementary Planning Documents 

 
- Quality Places (November 2011); 
- Residential Parking Standards (January 2009); 
- Biodiversity (December 2009); 
- Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury Character Areas (January 2005). 

 
National Planning Policy Framework 

 
25) At national level, the National Planning Policy Framework (the ‘NPPF’ 

or the ‘Framework’) is a material consideration of significant weight in 
the determination of planning applications. The National Planning Policy 
Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or the ‘Framework’) states that (as required by 
statute) applications for planning permission must be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise; and sets out a general presumption in favour of 
sustainable development unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise. A deliverable 5-year supply of housing within each local 
authority area is required, and if this is not demonstrated a tilted 
balance in favour of the development applies.  

38



26) Three dimensions of sustainability are to be sought jointly: economic 
(supporting economy and ensuring land availability); social (providing 
housing, creating high quality environment with accessible local 
services); and environmental (contributing to, protecting and enhancing 
natural, built and historic environment) whilst local circumstances 
should also be taken into account, so that development responds to the 
different opportunities for achieving sustainable development in 
different areas. 

 
National Planning Practice Guidance  

 
27) Where material, the Planning Practice Guidance which supports the 

provisions and policies of the NPPF should be afforded weight in the 
consideration and determination of planning applications.  

 
Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative 
Background 

 
28) Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section 

38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require a 
Local Planning Authority determining an application to do so in 
accordance with the Development Plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise.  The Development Plan comprises the Saved 
Policies of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 and 
the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 2013 (which is not applicable 
in this case).  The NPPF and the Planning Practice Guidance constitute 
material considerations of significant weight. 

 
Principle: 

 
29) The property is located within the urban edge and within an existing 

residential area.  The principle of development is therefore established, 
subject to the proposed works being acceptable in scale and design, 
and in accordance with local and national policy. 

 
Sustainable Development: 

 
30) Section 2 of the NPPF (February 2019) states that the purpose of the 

planning system is to contribute to the achievement of sustainable 
development, which can be summarised as meeting the needs of the 
present without compromising the ability of future generations to meet 
their own needs. 

31) Achieving sustainable development means that the planning system 
has three overarching objectives – economic, social and environmental 
(which are interdependent and need to be pursued in mutually 
supportive ways) that should be delivered through the preparation and 
implementation of plans and the application of the policies in the 
Framework. 

39



32) Planning policies and decisions should play an active role in guiding 
development towards sustainable solutions, but in doing so should take 
local circumstances into account, to reflect the character, needs and 
opportunities of each area. 

33) Each of the three dimensions of sustainable development is considered 
below. 

34) National legislation and guidance, together with local policy ensure that 
all planning applications are tested for their resilience to and impact on 
the environment. Details elsewhere in this report set out the Climate 
Change and Environmental implications of this application and their 
proposed mitigations. 

 
Economic Sustainability: 

35) Section 2 of the NPPF, when discussing economic sustainability, seeks 
to ‘help build a strong, responsive and competitive economy, by 
ensuring that sufficient land of the right types is available in the right 
places and at the right time to support growth, innovation and improved 
productivity; and by identifying and coordinating the provision of 
infrastructure’. 

36) Due to the scale and nature of the proposal, there is limited economic 
benefit to the proposed scheme, aside from the potential for local firms 
to be employed during the construction phase.  It is therefore 
considered that the proposal would be neutral/slightly positive with 
regards to economic sustainability. 

 
Social Sustainability: 

37) Chapter 5 of the 2019 NPPF ‘Delivering a Sufficient Supply of Homes’ 
states that, ‘it is important that a sufficient amount and variety of land 
can come forward where it is needed, that the needs of groups with 
specific housing requirements are addressed and that land with 
permission is developed without unnecessary delay’. 

38) The proposed development would result in the modernisation of a fairly 
large family home with a substantial increase in size, which would limit 
the range of families to whom this property would be financially 
accessible in the future.  However, the location and current size of this 
property means this is already limited.  It is not considered that the 
alteration of this property, as proposed, would have a notable impact on 
the mix of properties available in the locality.  On balance, it is 
considered that the proposed scheme is neutral with regards to social 
sustainability. 

 
Environmental Sustainability: 

39) There are a number of different components to Environmental 
Sustainability, including consideration of site-specific planning matters 
and the impacts of the development on its surroundings.  These are 
considered below under the relevant subheadings.  

 

40



Design, Scale and Appearance: 

40) Policy 59.BE of the Local Plan requires development to take full and 
proper account of the context of the site including the character and 
appearance of the locality and be appropriate in mass, scale, 
materials, layout, design and siting.  It also requires a high standard 
of landscape design, a satisfactory means of access and layout for 
vehicles, cyclist and pedestrians, provision for refuse and cycle 
storage and for development to avoid unduly impacting on 
neighbouring uses through overlooking, loss of light, loss of outlook, 
noise and fumes. 

41) In relation to this site, the Hiltingbury Road West Character Area 
Appraisal as identified in the Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury 
Character Areas SPD, is also applicable.  While this document is 15 
years old, it remains relevant and provides guidance to support Local 
Plan policies.  

42) The guidance recommends that sufficient garden depth and areas 
are retained; no healthy mature trees are felled or damaged; the 
design of any new building work is compatible with the character of 
adjacent properties and fits well into the street scene; and that the 
building line is respected. 

43) The existing dwelling is a characterful property of its time, in need of 
modernisation.  Modernisation and home improvements have taken 
place along the length of Randall Road and in the area in general, 
and the extensions and alterations that can be seen are reflective of 
the architectural style of the periods in which they have been 
constructed.  Many properties have evolved over time to have 
significantly increased in size from the houses as originally built, as 
is typical in residential areas of this nature. 

44) The application proposes substantial increases to the size of the 
property and changes to the appearance of the house, reflective of 
the current design trends emerging in the wider area.  Rather than 
undertaking piecemeal development over a long period of time, the 
applicants have taken the decision to seek consent to carry out 
significant extensions to create a property they can grow into, 
thereby avoiding the disruption of multiple construction works over a 
longer period. However, the scheme has generated a fairly large 
number of objections in relation to the design and size of the 
proposals (together with a smaller number of letters of support). 

45) In seeking to create a family home that reflects a more modern living 
arrangement, the proposed development results in a 111% increase 
in internal floor area.  While it is a significant increase in floor area, 
this does not automatically mean the scheme can be considered as 
over-development.   

46) The dwelling sits within a substantial plot, characteristic of the 
properties along Randall Road; and the proposal does not 
detrimentally impact the amount of front or rear garden available. 

41



47) The addition of the side extension brings the south elevation to 
approx. 1.2m from the shared boundary with no. 34, and, at its 
closest point, approx. 1.8m from the corner of that house (a single 
storey garage).  To the north, the side extension sits approx. 1.2m 
from the shared boundary with no. 30 and, at its closest, approx. 
1.6m from the corner of the single storey extension (used as a study) 
which is set back approx. 5.0m from the main front elevation. It is 
notable that the separation distances vary along the length of 
Randall Road, with some properties very close together.   

48) Generally, it is the spacing at first floor level that draws the eye and 
has a greater visual effect.  While the proposed side extensions do 
extend the width of the property across the plot, a degree of 
separation is maintained at ground level, and, more significantly, the 
single storey projection at no. 30 results a greater separation at first 
floor where the proposed extension is two-storey.  The single storey 
elements at nos. 32 and 34 similarly provide separation at first floor.  
On balance, it is considered that the site can accommodate the 
increased width.  In addition, the spacing between the houses is not 
identified as a defining characteristic in the Hiltingbury Road West 
Character Area Appraisal, rather it is the distance between opposite 
houses that provides the ‘fairly spacious and open character’. 

49) It is also relevant that single storey side extensions (to a height of 
4m) could be constructed in the proposed locations without requiring 
planning permission, utilising permitted development rights. 

50) A number of objections have identified the projection of the front 
gables forward of the existing front elevation, and therefore the 
building line, as a particular concern due to the impact on the street 
scene.  The agent has provided a Street Elevation and Street Plan to 
demonstrate the impact of the proposal.   

51) The Character Area guidance does not categorically state that 
development forward of the building line is forbidden, rather it 
requires development to ‘respect’ it.  In addition, it should be noted 
this is guidance to support policy rather than being enshrined in 
policy itself.  It is therefore necessary to consider what is the impact 
of the proposed forward projection and whether this fails to respect 
the building line to an extent that the character of the street scene is 
detrimentally impacted.   

52) The building line in Randall Road is fairly consistent, although there 
is a small degree of variation in places, particularly along the curves 
of the road, as might be expected.  The existing property at no. 32 
sits very slightly behind and at an angle to no. 30 and slightly forward 
of, and at an angle to, no. 34.  The submitted street plan 
demonstrates that the front extensions do not significantly change 
the course of the building line and do not undermine the spacious 
and open character of the street by bringing the property significantly 
closer to the houses on the opposite side of the road.  The proposals 
will change the relationship between nos. 32 and 34 Randall Road, 
which is a more visible interaction in the street when travelling north 

42



due to the openness of the shared front boundary.  On balance, it is 
not considered the proposals would impact the relationship between 
the fronts of these properties to such an extent that a refusal would 
be warranted. 

53) With regards to concerns that granting permission for this 
development would create a precedent, each planning application is 
considered on its own merits, taking account of individual site 
circumstances.  While it is considered the forward projection is 
acceptable in this case, it does not follow that granting planning 
permission for this scheme would therefore prejudice future 
applications in the locality. 

54) Further concerns have been raised regarding the modern design of 
the front elevations, incorporating increased glazing, rendered walls, 
grey windows and doors and clay tiles.   

55) The design of the proposals would create a property that is very 
different in character to the existing property, which has clearly 
divided local opinion with both support and objection to the design.   
This does not render the development unacceptable; rather, an 
assessment needs to be made of the impact of the proposal on the 
property and the character of the locality.   

56) The attractive character of the area is something that has been 
commented on by objectors and supporters alike, with disagreement 
as to whether the proposals negatively impact the street or enhance 
it.  While the area is attractive, it must be noted it is not designated 
as a conservation area, nor is it included as part of the Hiltingbury 
Special Policy Area, both of which are afforded more policy 
protection due to their character and appearance.     

57) The built form varies through the street, as was the case when the 
properties were originally constructed.  White render is seen along 
the road, and indeed the neighbouring property, no. 30, is rendered.  
Red clay tiles are also widely used, which helps to soften the crisp 
appearance of render.  The applicant has agreed to use red clay 
tiles, as shown on the proposed plans.  A condition can be imposed 
requiring the use of these tiles and the re-use of the existing clay 
tiles where possible.  It is also relevant that the dwelling could be 
rendered in its current form under permitted development rights.  
Similarly, the replacement of existing doors and windows with grey-
framed windows/doors would not require consent. 

58) The use of increased glazing is a current architectural trend and can 
be seen increasingly in the general area.  While this, combined with 
the gable projections, it not a characteristic that is currently seen in 
the street, there is existing variation in the street scene and it is not 
considered the design is discordant.   

59) The rear extensions have a limited visual impact on the street scene 
due to their location at the rear of the property, although partial views 
will be available as is the case with other extensions along the street.  
The use of hipped roofs reduces the bulk of the extensions at roof 

43



level and it is considered this element of the scheme has an 
acceptable visual impact in the street scene. 

60) On balance, therefore, while recognising the strength of feeling the 
proposals have generated, assessment of the impact of the scheme 
does not identify a significant detrimental impact that would warrant 
refusal on design or character grounds. 

 
Landscape and Trees: 

61) The resident at no. 30 Randall Road has expressed concerns 
regarding the potential impact on the protected Silver Birch at the 
front of their property. 

62) An arboricultural report has been submitted as part of the 
application.  This has been reviewed by the Council’s Tree 
Consultant who has confirmed they are satisfied that the proposed 
tree protection measures, which will protect the Silver Birch.  
Compliance with the submitted report can reasonably be 
conditioned. 

63) The property itself has limited landscape features that would be 
affected by the development and, the front and rear gardens will be 
shaped by the occupiers over time, as occurs with all residential 
properties.  While it makes a contribution to the street scene, there 
are no landscape features within the front of the site that warrant 
protection through conditions.  

 
Access, Parking and Transport Matters: 

64) An objection has been received regarding the potential for residents 
to require additional parking space for cars as their family grows up.   

65) The property is already a 4-bed dwelling.  The Council’s Residential 
Parking Standards SPD requires the provision of three parking 
spaces which can be accommodated within the site.  The increase in 
number of bedrooms by one does not increase the parking 
requirements, therefore the scheme is policy compliant.  The access 
is not proposed to change. 

66) A condition has been recommended requiring the submission of a 
Construction Management Plan which includes the reinstatement of 
grass verges should they become damaged as a result of the 
construction phase.  Grass verges are a feature in the area and 
make a contribution to the attractive character.  This management 
plan will also consider how to deal with mud on the road. 

 
Noise, Air Quality and Land Contamination: 

67) The scheme proposes extensions to a dwelling to provide additional 
living accommodation.  As such, the development would not 
generate noise or air pollution, and the site is not in an area known to 
be subject to land contamination.   

44



68) There is the potential to generate noise and air pollution during the 
construction phase, as a result of building activities.  The 
Construction Management Plan will be required to demonstrate how 
noise, vibration and dust will be controlled to minimize the impact on 
surrounding properties. 

 
Ecology: 

69) The proposal extends into existing garden space, in close proximity 
to the existing dwelling.  This land has a lower ecological value than 
land towards the rear of the garden.  It is not considered that the 
proposals would have a detrimental impact on ecology. 

70) In addition, the proposal is not considered to result in a likely 
significant impact on a European Protected site (SPA, SAC or 
Ramsar). HRA (Habitat Regulations Assessment) screening was not 
required for this development due to the scale and nature of 
development. 

 

Residential Amenity: 

71) Saved policy 59.BE requires proposed development to avoid unduly 
impacting on neighbouring uses through overlooking, loss of light, loss 
of outlook, noise and fumes. 

72) Due to the length of the rear gardens, there is no impact on the amenity 
of residents to the rear of the site. 

73) Residents at both nos. 30 and 34 Randall Road have objected to the 
proposals on the grounds of overlooking, loss of light and sunlight, and 
intrusion.  Both properties have been visited by the case officer to view 
the proposals from their gardens.  Due to the pandemic, it has not been 
possible to enter the dwellings, but sufficient assessment can be made 
from viewing the properties externally. 

74) The proposed single storey side extension on the south side of no. 32 
does not have a detrimental impact on amenity due to the height, 
design, position and relationship to habitable rooms at no. 34.  Further 
the two-storey rear extension has limited limit due to the design, 
position and orientation.  No additional side windows are proposed.  In 
addition, under permitted development rights, it would be possible to 
construct a 3m deep two storey extension on the rear of the existing 
property without requiring planning permission.  It is therefore the 
impact of the additional metre that must be considered.  It is felt the 
impact of the proposed development on no. 34 does not warrant a 
refusal of the application. 

75) The residents at no. 30 have contended that there will be a detrimental 
impact to their light to their windows on the southern elevation and to 
their study.  The windows on the southern elevation serve a landing and 
bathroom which do not constitute habitable rooms.  The impact on light 
levels to these windows is therefore not consider significant.  No 
windows are present in the side elevation of the study extension and 
windows are inserted in the front and rear elevations.   

45



76) While the side extension has the potential to reduce the light levels to 
the front window of the study, the proposal does meet the 45-degree 
test.  The proposal also meets the 45-degree test for the rear study 
window.  Further, the room is dual-aspected and so overall light levels 
would not be reduced to an extent that a refusal is warranted.    

77) With regards to the two-storey rear extension, there is the potential for 
the extension to impact sunlight to the western section of the garden 
closest to the house.   

78) In order to properly assess the impact of the proposal, it is necessary to 
consider what can be constructed under PD as a ‘fallback’ position.  As 
discussed above, a two-storey extension of up to 3m deep and a single-
storey side extension of up to 3m beyond the rear elevation can be 
constructed without requiring formal planning permission. In addition, 
rear/ side single storey extensions up to 4m in height can be 
constructed to a depth of 8m under the prior approval process.  These 
elements have the potential to impact sunlight to the rear garden of no. 
30, close to the boundary with no. 32.  Due to the first floor addition to 
the side extension and the additional 1m depth to the rear extensions, 
this impact would be increased. 

79) It is also relevant that a recent amendment to the General Permitted 
Development Order (The Town and County Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) (Amendment) (No. 2) Order 2020) 
confers the right to extend existing houses upwards, by way of the 
addition of up to 2 storeys (not exceeding the height of the highest part 
of the existing roof by 7m and not exceeding 18m in total).  (This is 
subject to restrictions regarding materials, roof pitch and window 
position and falls under the prior approval process.)   

80) While the proposal does not incorporate additional storeys to the 
property, it must be acknowledged that development of that nature 
would have a greater impact than the works currently proposed.   

81) The garden to no. 30 is substantial and, due to the location on a curve 
in the road, flares out towards the rear, with the dwelling angled away 
from no. 32.  Due to the orientation of the buildings, no. 30 will 
overshadow part of the garden itself during the afternoon.  Substantial 
trees are located within the garden which cast much of the garden away 
from the house into shade through the morning and into the early 
afternoon.  As the sun moves round, the shadow cast by these trees 
will move away from the house enabling more of the garden closer to 
the house to receive direct sunlight.  The BRE guidelines regarding 
daylight and sunlight recommend that at least half of a garden can 
receive at least two sunlight on March 21st.  (This does not have to be 
continuous sunlight or in the same part of the garden).  In light of the 
substantial size of garden at no. 30, building orientation and 
amendments to the design of the application scheme, it is considered 
that this recommendation could be met.     

82) It has been contended that the proposal may constitute an infringement 
of rights afforded by the Prescription Act of 1832.  This is not a material 

46



planning consideration and therefore is not required to be considered.  
Rather, issues related to the ‘right to light’ (the right that allows property 
owners to receive light from the sky through defined ‘apertures’ in their 
property) are civil matters that would have to be pursued by the 
property owner outside of planning. 

83) Concern has been raised regarding the potential for a balcony to be 
constructed on the small flat roof element closest to no. 30 and the 
consequence overlooking.  A balcony at first floor would require 
planning permission, which is unlikely to be granted were an application 
to be made.  For the avoidance of doubt, a condition is suggested to 
clarify this point.  The scheme proposes the use of a Juliette balcony 
which provides a safety barrier for the proposed doors but does not 
allow for people to step out.  

84) Concerns have also been expressed that the rear extensions will be 
intrusive and dominating.  It is recognised that the extensions will be 
visible to the neighbouring residents, as is typical for two-storey 
extensions in residential areas and will therefore change what can be 
seen by neighbours.  It is considered that the size of the garden and the 
relationship between the two properties, and between no. 32 and 34, 
does not render the proposed scheme intrusive or dominating. 

85) On balance, it is considered that the impact on the residents at no. 30 
Randall Road is not sufficient to warrant a refusal of this application. 

 
Human Health: 

86) Human health relating to noise and ground conditions has been 
considered and no significant adverse effects are likely. Traffic and 
air quality impacts or any other possible impacts are also not 
considered significantly harmful to human health. 

 
Sustainability Measures and Climate Change: 

 
87) National legislation and guidance, together with local policy ensure that 

all planning applications are tested for their resilience to and impact on 
the environment.  
 

88) The NPPF (paragraphs 95-99), Saved Policies 34.ES and 37.ES of 
the Local Plan, and emerging Policies S1, DM2 and DM3 of the 
submitted Local Plan require development to be sustainable in terms 
of resource use, climate change and energy use.  

89) Due to the age and condition of the property, the construction of the 
extensions will improve the energy efficiency and sustainability 
credentials of the property through meeting current Building 
Regulations requirements. 

 
 
 
 
 

47



Other material considerations 
 

Equalities Implications: 
 

90) Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 created the public sector equality 
duty. Section149 states:- 

- A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due 
regard to the need to: 

a. eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and 
any other conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act; 

b. advance equality of opportunity between persons who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and persons 
who do not share it; 

c. foster good relations between persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do 
not share it. 

 
91) When making policy decisions, the Council must take account of the 

equality duty and in particular any potential impact on protected groups. 
It is considered that this application does not raise any equality 
implications. 

 

Conclusion 
 

92) The application has been assessed with regards to local and national 
policy, taking account of material planning considerations raised by 
third parties.  It is considered, on balance, that the proposed 
development broadly accords with local and national policy and 
guidance.  As such, the application is recommended for permission, 
subject to conditions. 

48



 

49



This page is intentionally left blank



(CFH, Chandlers Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee - Wednesday 16 
September 2020) 
 
Application Number:   H/20/88378    
Case Officer: Rachael Morris    
Received Date:  30/07/20    
Site Address:  31 ORMESBY DRIVE, CHANDLER'S FORD, EASTLEIGH, SO53 1SH    
Applicant:  Mr Keith Sutcliffe & Ms Natalie Wigman    
Proposal:  Single storey rear extension    

 
Recommendation:      
Permit 
 

  

CONDITIONS AND REASONS: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance 
with the following plans numbered: 1239-P-01 and 1239-P-02 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 

2. The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years 
from the date of this decision. 
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990. 

3. The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of 
the development hereby permitted shall match in type, colour and 
texture those used on the existing dwelling. 
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual relationship between the new 
development and the existing. 
 
Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework (February 2019), Eastleigh Borough 
Council takes a positive approach to the handling of development 
proposals so as to achieve, whenever possible, a positive outcome and 
to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a timely manner. 

 

 
Report: 
 

1. This application has been referred to Committee because the applicant 
is a member of staff at Eastleigh Borough Council. 

 
Site Characteristics and Character of the Locality 

 
2. The property is a two storey linked detached house set in a good 

sized corner plot with parking to the front and garden to the rear.  
The site is within a residential area and there are examples of rear 
extensions and conservatories on some of the nearby properties.  
Ormesby Drive is characterised by good-sized homes, that are often 
linked-detached or detached.  The houses are set-off the highway 

51

Agenda Item 9



with front gardens and driveways.  The house sits well within the 
street and follows the same design characteristics.   

 
Description of Application 

 
3. The proposal is a single storey rear extension that sits behind the 

house’s existing store and dining area.  The extension has a mono-
pitched roof with rooflights and measures 3.3m depth and 5.8m width.  
The materials will be buff coloured brickwork and brown tiles to match 
the existing house.   

 
 

Relevant Planning History 
 

4. Original permissions: 
Z/16805/002/00 - construction of roads, junctions, footpaths, verges 
and drainage – Permit – Nov 1978 
Z/16805/007/00 - siting and design of 60 dwellings with garages – 
Permit – Nov 1979 

5. There is no other relevant planning history.   
 
 

Representations Received 
 

6. None 
 

Consultation Responses 
 

7. None 
 

Policy Context and Designations Applicable to Site 
 

 Within Built-up Area Boundary 

 Within Established Residential Area 

 Within HRA Screening Area 
 

Development Plan Saved Policies and Emerging Local Plan 
Policies 

 
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011) Saved Policies: 

 

 25.NC (Promotion of biodiversity); 

 59.BE (Design criteria); 

 104.T (Off-highway parking) 
 

Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, July 2014 
 

8. The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 was submitted for 
examination in July 2014 but the Inspector concluded that insufficient 

52



housing was being provided for in the Plan and that it was unsound.  
While this has not been withdrawn and remains a material 
consideration, it can therefore be considered to have extremely limited 
weight in the determination of this application. 

 
Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036 

 
9. The 2016-2036 Local Plan was submitted to the Planning Inspectorate 

on 31st October 2018 and the examination hearings concluded in 
January 2020. The Council received the Inspector’s post-Hearing 
advice on 1 April 2020.  The Council is progressing with modifications 
to the Local Plan to enable its adoption, anticipated in late 2020/early 
2021.  Given the status of the Emerging Plan, it is considered that 
overall moderate weight can be attributed to it. The most relevant 
policies are: 

 
10. Development Management policies: 

 

 DM1 (General Development Criteria); 

 DM11 (Nature Conservation);  

 DM14 (Car Parking); 

 DM23 (Residential Development in Urban Areas); 
 

Supplementary Planning Documents 
 

 Quality Places (November 2011); 

 Residential Parking Standards (January 2009); 
 

National Planning Policy Framework 
 

11. At national level, the National Planning Policy Framework (the ‘NPPF’ 
or the ‘Framework’) is a material consideration of significant weight in 
the determination of planning applications. The National Planning Policy 
Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or the ‘Framework’) states that (as required by 
statute) applications for planning permission must be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise and sets out a general presumption in favour of 
sustainable development unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise. A deliverable 5 year supply of housing within each local 
authority area is required, and if this is not demonstrated a tilted 
balance in favour of the development applies. Agent of Change 
principles protect existing businesses. 

 
12. Three dimensions of sustainability are to be sought jointly: economic 

(supporting economy and ensuring land availability); social (providing 
housing, creating high quality environment with accessible local 
services); and environmental (contributing to, protecting and enhancing 
natural, built and historic environment) whilst local circumstances 
should also be taken into account, so that development responds to the 

53



different opportunities for achieving sustainable development in 
different areas. 

 
 

National Planning Practice Guidance  
 

13. Where material, the Planning Practice Guidance which supports the 
provisions and policies of the NPPF should be afforded weight in the 
consideration and determination of planning applications.  

 
Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative 
Background 

 
14. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section 

38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require a 
Local Planning Authority determining an application to do so in 
accordance with the Development Plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 

15. The Development Plan comprises the Saved Policies of the Eastleigh 
Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 

16. The NPPF and the Planning Practice Guidance constitute material 
considerations of significant weight. 

 
Principle: 

 
17. The site is located within the urban edge where the principle of 

development is accepted, subject to the details of the proposal meeting 
the relevant planning policy. 

 

18. Policy 59.BE of the Local Plan requires development to take full and 
proper account of the context of the site including the character and 
appearance of the locality and be appropriate in mass, scale, 
materials, layout, design and siting.  It also requires a high standard 
of landscape design, have a satisfactory means of access and layout 
for vehicles, cyclist and pedestrians, make provision for refuse and 
cycle storage and avoid unduly impacting on neighbouring uses 
through overlooking, loss of light, loss of outlook, noise and fumes. 

 

Assessment  

19. The proposed single storey rear extension suits the dwelling in terms of 
its scale, appearance, and form. 

20. The property is sited on a corner plot and it is noted that the top of the 
extension will be visible over the high close boarded fence running 
alongside the road.  However, the single storey extension is a modest 
addition to the house and will blend in with the residential character and 
appearance of the locality.  

54



21. The single storey extension is set a good distance away from the 
neighbouring dwellings, behind high boundary fencing where it is not 
considered to have a unacceptable impact on the amenity of the 
neighbouring properties in terms of loss of privacy, outlook or light.  The 
development accords with guidance set out in the ‘Quality Places’ SPD. 

22. The design and layout respect the character and appearance of the 
locality.  The character of the street scene is maintained. 

23. The development would not be an overdevelopment of the site and 
would retain sufficient amenity space in the garden.  

24. The proposal will not affect the property’s car parking provision nor 
generate the need for further car parking. 

25. There will be no adverse impact upon trees or other natural features 
worthy of retention. 

26. HRA (Habitat Regulations Assessment) screening was not required for 
this development as it falls outside the designated zone of impact. 

 
Equalities Implications: 

 
27. Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 created the public sector equality 

duty. Section149 states:- 
28. A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard 

to the need to: 
eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act; 
advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 
foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

 
29. When making policy decisions, the Council must take account of the 

equality duty and in particular any potential impact on protected groups. 
It is considered that this application does not raise any equality 
implications. 

 

Conclusion 
 

30. In conclusion of the assessment above, the proposal is considered to 
be in accordance with to the National Planning Policy Framework, 
saved policy 59.BE of the saved Local Plan Review 2001-2011, policy 
DM1 of the Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036, and 
the Quality Places Supplementary Planning Document (2011). 

 
 
 

55



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	7 Planning Application - 16 Keble Road, Chandler's Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 3DS - F/19/85922
	Keble Road Location Plan

	8 Planning Application - 32 Randall Road, Chandler's Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 5AL - H/20/87573
	9 Planning Application - 31 Ormesby Drive, Chandler's Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 1SH - H/20/88378

